
Minutes 
Full Commission Meeting 

March 9, 2001 
Hotel Roanoke 

 
Approved June 8, 2001 

 
Members Present by Roll Call 
 
Mr. Anderson 
Mr. Arthur 
Delegate Bennett 
Mr. Bryant 
Delegate Byron 
Delegate Clement 
Mr. Courter 
Delegate Dudley 
Mr. Fields 
Mr. Forbes 
Mr. Grinstead 
Delegate Johnson 
Delegate Kilgore 
Mr. Lief 
Mr. Montgomery 
Mr. Osborne 
Senator Puckett 
Delegate Ruff 
Mr. Stallard 
Mr. Taylor 
Ms. Thomas 
Mr. Walker 
Senator Wampler 
Mr. West 
Mr. Williams 
Senator Hawkins 
______________________________________________
Senator Hawkins welcomed all to the meeting and 
commended the commission’s efforts with regard to 
economic development to date and reinforced the 
importance of it. 

 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 2   
 
Delegate Kilgore commended the Commission for its efforts to take care of the farmers as well 
as for its work for the economic development of the communities.   
 
Senator Hawkins commended the Commission Staff for its outstanding job with this new 
endeavor and remarked on Virginia’s leadership role regarding Tobacco Settlement money. 
 
Delegate Kilgore made a motion to approve the minutes from the January 8, 2001, Full 
Commission Meeting. 
 
Seconded 
All in favor by aye vote 
None opposed  
Motion adopted 
 
Clark Lewis of Troutman Saunders Mays & Valentine spoke to the Commission and announced 
that they have concluded the year 2000 indemnification payments.  There was $62 million 
available last year for indemnification.  Currently $60,076,126.67 has been distributed through 
the State Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services and the Department of the Treasury, 
leaving approximately $1.9 million remaining.  Because the Commission decided to approve no 
additional forms, the books are closed for the year 2000 indemnification payments, and they are 
now beginning the year 2001.  Projected Dates for the indemnification process are: April 15, 
2001, Verification forms will be sent out; during the week of April 22, five regional workshop 
sessions will be conducted in Southwest and Southside Virginia; pending approval from the 
Commission, May 10 or 11 will be the deadline for receiving verification forms; payment data 
will be sent to the State Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services by May 15 for checks 
to be distributed to farmers before Memorial Day Weekend. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked if there are any unknown settlements. 
 
Clark Lewis responded that there are approximately 10 claims in dispute and 2 or 3 lawsuits, 
leaving a very small amount of money pending. 
 
Mr. Forbes asked, after the experience of this year, how much of the reserves is it safe to 
release. 
 
Clark Lewis replied that unless the Commission approves any further payment, any money 
above $62 million could be released from reserve. 
 
Delegate Bennett asked if it would be lawful to close out that reserve account and put that 
money back into use. 
 
Clark Lewis answered that he is not authorized to answer that, as it requires a legal opinion, but 
that he can envision no scenario where any money above the $62 million could be claimed.   
 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 3   
 
Mr. Forbes asked Mr. Lewis if at the next meeting he could give an estimate of what reserve 
should be set for the year 2001. 
 
Clark Lewis replied yes.   
 
Steven Sheppard of the Attorney General’s Office gave a report on this year’s legislation in the 
General Assembly and pending litigation.  Delegate Dudley introduced two bills in the House, 
HB 2180 and HB 2181.  They passed both houses of the GA.  HB 2180, concerning the 
definitions of grower and quota holder and conforming the Code to Commission practices, was 
amended by the Senate in regards to section 9-384 with reference to the appointment of the 
Executive Director.  Those amendments passed the House as well.  Pertaining to the Star 
Scientific litigation, the suit filed by Star Scientific against the Attorney General’s Office in 
December of last year, the Attorney General filed a motion to dismiss in January and agreed to a 
briefing schedule with the court and counsel for Star Scientific.  All briefs have been filed and 
oral arguments for the motion to dismiss will be Monday March 12, 2001, before Judge Spencer 
of the U.S. District Court, Eastern District of Virginia, in Richmond.  They do not have any 
indication as to whether he will rule from the bench, but they hope he will rule soon so that they 
can proceed, but regardless of what happens at the District Court level, it will go up to the 4th 
Circuit Court of Appeals. 
 
Josh Lief introduced Dr. Dennis Fisher, Chairman & CEO of Carilion Biomedical Institute. 
 
Dr. Fisher briefed the Commission on The Carilion Biomedical Institute.  The project was 
started with the intent of being a partnership for progress in healthcare.  The goals of the Institute 
are to strengthen the biomedical research capabilities at the partner institutions, accelerate the 
transformation of research into products that improve healthcare worldwide, and to create 
business opportunities that will enhance the economic development in Southwest and Central 
Virginia.  There is a large partnership: UVA, CBI, CHS, Virginia Tech, businesses and 
government agencies.  The strategy of the Institute centers on integration, starting by identifying 
healthcare problems and doing targeted research, then moving on to accelerate the transition to 
products and to commercialize those products.  The Research Centers are at the Medical 
Automation Center at UVA doing robotics, the Optical Sciences and Engineering Research 
Center at Virginia Tech, Medical Bioinformatics Research Center at UVA, VA Tech and CBI. A 
few examples of what they are doing is working on technology to reduce medical errors and 
reduce costs, eldercare, biocompatible materials, and optically activated therapy.  The Medical 
Bioinformatics and Research Center is in its final approval stage.  It will leverage the agriculture 
focus of VA Bioinformatics Institute.  They what to combine that with UVA patient records and 
gene profiles then create and analyze a database to accelerate cures for major diseases, then 
expand the application of tobacco-derived medicines.  The plan for that center includes $1 
million from UVA, VA Tech, and CBI each for five years (total $15 million) for initiation. The 
initial project is the VA Cancer Genomic Enterprise; additional partners are being brought in for 
this, VCU, GMU, CHS, INOVA, and Valley Health Systems, to provide tissue samples and 
some of the analysis of the data.  From this will be created Data Service Businesses.  He 
proposed that as they move forward they work with the Commission to create economic 
development opportunities for Southern Virginia. The CBI builds businesses through four stages, 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 4   
 
research proposals, research projects, product transitions, and commercialization of these 
products. Last year there were 100 proposals, 46 projects were completed, five products are 
ready for commercialization and one had already had its commercialization event.  With 
increased proposals due to increased interest, equal projects and funding the project is expected 
to continue to grow in the coming years and additional funding will be brought in from the 
government.  The first start up company will be in Charlottesville, called BioPhile.  It will create 
an automatic storage and retrieval system. Dr. Fisher showed a short film of what it may look 
like.  They see three important areas of support, people, financial, and flexible space.  The 
Resource Allocation is $18 million from the Universities over a seven-year period, University 
subcontracts is $10 million, commercialization is $46 million, medial challenge fund is $2 
million, $14 million for Angel Funding, Partner matching is $30 million and government grants, 
totaling approximately $160 million. The funding to CBI totaling $92 million comes from 
Carilion ($20 million), private gifts and return in investments from Start-up Company and 
licensing royalties.  The first year summary: $4 million for Biomedical Research at the 
Universities, 50 projects including over 70 faculty and students, launch of the MBC, first spin off 
company, Riverside Park and economic development momentum.  He declared that they are off 
to a rapid start with many projects ahead of schedule. 
 
Copy of Presentation was requested.  Dr. Fisher said he would provide staff with a copy. 
 
Carthan Currin updated the Commission on the budget.  Second quarter reports were sent out 
in early February, third quarter statements will be mailed in April.  The Chairman wants to 
appoint a work group to work with the staff on the FY 2002 budget.   
 
Senator Hawkins explained that the executive board will have a meeting March 29, 2001, in 
Chatham at 12pm to address the future complexities of the budget and the meshing of the 
economic margins.  The place will be announced to the members.  Senator Hawkins would like 
to appoint to a special sub-committee of John Forbes, C. D. Bryant, Cindy Thomas, and 
Senator Wampler to work on the budget prior to the executive meeting.   
 
Charles Steger, The President of Virginia Tech, introduced Dr. Bruno Sobral, Director of the 
Virginia Bioinformatics Institute. 
 
Dr. Bruno Sobral, Director of the Virginia Bioinformatics Institute reported on the Institute.  
Members were provided with a presentation packet (available from staff), The Virginia 
Bioinformatics Institute: Progress to Date.  Dr. Sobral briefed the Commission on the handout. 
 
 
Senator Hawkins reinforced that this helps to redefine our region of the state to more than just 
textiles and coal, bringing about possibilities for everyone.  Then he commented on the issue of 
notifying the localities of available money that came up the previous day in committee meetings.  
The Executive Committee recommended that a motion be made to change the date of the 
application process to May so that the applicants can have a true amount of money that is 
available. 
 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 5   
 
Mr. Bryant made the motion to move the application process to May thus allowing the localities 
to have a more precise idea of the amount of money available to them. 
 
Motion Seconded 
All in favor by aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion adopted 
 
Senator Hawkins spoke of the break down in communication with regard to what is going in the 
application process.  It is the Executive Committee’s recommendation, with one negative vote, to 
put in place a mechanism allowing people to know what applications have been submitted in the 
particular localities.  This would give everyone the opportunity to work together within the 
localities for long term planning.  This is solely for informational purposes. 
 
Delegate Kilgore clarified his reasons for voting against this motion in Executive Committee.  It 
should be the goal of the Commission to find the best projects regardless of where it is, and the 
localities should not be led to believe that they have veto power over another application or a 
right to the money.  The localities could get that same information by calling and requesting it.   
 
Delegate Clement added his concern over what real benefit it will have when you may receive 
some applications on the deadline date. 
 
Senator Hawkins stated that this change will allow the localities to discuss and resolve conflicts 
before they come before the Commission, thus putting everyone on the same page and helping 
the tone and communication within the application process.  And by no means would this give 
them veto power; it is simply a notification.   
 
Delegate Bennett moved to accept the executive committee’s recommendation to notify the 
localities and applicants of all applications received by the Commission. 
 
Motion seconded 
 
Senator Hawkins asked if there is any discussion and again clarified that this in no way gives 
the localities veto power. 
 
No response. 
 
Motion adopted by aye vote 
Delegate Kilgore opposed 
 
Senator Hawkins reemphasized that this will create a better flow of communication. 
 
Delegate Byron asked how this information will be distributed. 
 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 6   
 
Senator Hawkins replied that at the end of the application process, the information will be 
mailed out.   
 
Committee Reports 
 
Deal Closing Committee 
 
Josh Lief reported that he met with Senator Wampler and Delegate Clement and discussed the 
Deal Closing Fund and the guidelines that were adopted temporarily at the last meeting.  There 
are still further guidelines that need to be decided on and therefore there is nothing to report.   
 
Senator Hawkins asked if they need a special meeting to discuss these guidelines. 
 
Mr. Lief responded that the three of them would get together to work with staff to come up with 
some guidelines. 
 
Delegate Dudley clarified that there are currently no guidelines in that the ones adopted at the 
last meeting in January were for 30 days. And with agreement from Mr. Lief motioned to extend 
the guidelines to the next meeting. 
 
Seconded 
All in favor by aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion adopted 
 
Special Projects Committee 
 
Senator Hawkins commended everyone who worked on these for their long hard work. 
 
Delegate Bennett stated that each commissioner should have a copy of Southside Virginia 
Regional Technology Consortium and an Exhibit A showing the counties participating in the 
project (attached).  If there are questions, the project leaders are available to answer them.  The 
Special Projects Committee voted unanimously to approve their request for a hardware piece, 
which is outlined on the third to last page of the document.  The object of this project is to bring 
technology into K-12 classrooms, facilitate distance learning, and to put our rural schools on the 
same technological level as others.  He introduced Troilen Seward, Carole Inge, and Paul 
Nichols.  Delegate Bennett moved to accept this project. 
 
Motion seconded 
 
Discussion 
 
Senator Wampler asked if this request is only for one-time funding. 
 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 7   
 
Delegate Bennett answered that it will be one-time funding for hardware, no operating costs, 
unless the Center Consortium in SW Virginia wishes to tie in, but that would depend on whether 
there is a grass roots request from that area.  Rockingham County has asked to come in the upper 
part of the valley to serve as the hub center for these technology capabilities. 
 
Senator Wampler asked for clarification on Rockingham’s desire to be the data hub for the 
Southwest. 
 
Delegate Bennett stated that he did not think that would include the Senator, but asked Ms. Inge 
for clarification. 
 
Ms. Inge, Director for the Institute for Teaching Through Technology and Innovative Practices, 
replied that Rockingham received a Verizon grant and came forward as willing to be a data hub, 
meaning that they would have core equipment allowing school divisions in Southwest Virginia 
to talk with each other using video conferencing type of technology.   
 
Senator Puckett asked who qualified Rockingham as Southwest. 
 
Ms. Inge explains that it is a large area. 
 
Mr. Lief asked where these funds are coming from, the special projects fund, is that a 
combination of SW and SS funds? 
 
Delegate Bennett replied that he believes that is correct. 
  
Senator Wampler asked if the localities were asked to participate in the funding and if any of 
the budget was General Assembly driven. 
 
Troilen Seward, SVRTC Executive Chair, responded that they have local money, grant funding, 
partnership money, as well as money from the Department of Education. 
 
Senator Wampler asked how much money is provided by the localities. 
 
Ms. Seward replied that the localities would contribute about $15,000 each. 
 
Mr. Lief requested clarification as to why this project was assigned to the Special Projects 
Committee. 
 
Delegate Bennett responded that it is largely because it focuses on K-12 rather than higher 
education or community colleges. 
 
Senator Wampler commented that he supports the project but is concerned that the K-12 
community not continue to return to the Commission in search of funding that should be the 
responsibility of the local government. 
 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 8   
 
Senator Hawkins agreed. 
 
Mr. Anderson asked where the Commission was in the budget process and if these funds were 
already allocated to the Special Projects Committee. 
 
Senator Hawkins replied that this project does not affect money for the other projects or 
committees in that these are additional funds. 
 
Delegate Bennett reiterated that this will not effect the allocations of the other committees. 
 
Mr. Lief asked how much will be levied to Special Projects for this project. 
 
Delegate Bennett responded that the Executive Committee proposed a transfer of $5 million into 
the Special Projects Fund.  Prior to that, there has been approximately $800,000 originally 
assigned to Special Projects but was moved to the Deal Closing Fund temporarily. Delegate 
Bennett was unsure of the current status of that $800,000. 
 
Mr. Grinstead asked about connecting Southwest Virginia to similar projects. 
 
Ms. Inge deferred to Ms. Seward.  
 
Delegate Johnson commented that the SWVEC was the first in the commonwealth and it is still 
alive and well.  He hoped that this would not be in competition with that. 
 
Delegate Bennett replied that it is not at all in competition. 
 
Ms. Inge responded to Mr. Grinstead that the money they are requesting is for a Data Hub to 
connect the school divisions. To talk back, the divisions need the equipment as well.   
 
Delegate Bennett reminded the Chair that a motion is before the Commission to approve this 
project. 
 
Delegate Dudley asked for clarification on where the money is currently.  Is it the same money 
that was moved to the Deal Closing Fund? 
 
Senator Hawkins and Delegate Dudley asked if Delegate Bennett would like to move to 
release the hold on the money in the Special Projects Fund. 
 
Delegate Bennett moved to move the reserve of $5 million into the Special Projects account.   
 
Senator Hawkins commented that it would do no harm to put the money that has accumulated 
in the reserves into an escrow account.  The Senator added that the Commission will be dealing 
with some very expensive projects and therefore this may be a good time to set some money 
aside in the Special Projects fund.   
 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 9   
 
Delegate Bennett moved to transfer the $4,270,364 to the Special Projects Fund. 
 
Motion seconded 
 
Senator Hawkins explained that this is simply taking some of the money that has accumulated 
and pooling it into one fund. 
 
Delegate Byron asked if there is an immediate need for this transition, seeing as how there will 
be a meeting concerning the budget in the very near future. The Delegate asked if it would not be 
more efficient to wait until the new budget. 
 
Senator Hawkins responded that under normal circumstances it would be but this money is 
needed to clean up loose ends and avoid interfering with other Committees’ monies. 
 
Mr. Grinstead remarked on the possibility if this setting a precedent for funding projects that 
should be funded elsewhere. 
 
Senator Hawkins replied that it is still under the Commission’s control and it is clearly 
understood that the Commission does not intend to start this project as an open-ended situation. 
 
Mr. Lief commented that the previous day, the SW Economic Development Committee had to 
prorate dramatically and cut funding for a whole series of projects because there was not enough 
money to fund them and now we are proposing to move money to Special Projects to fully fund a 
project. He wondered what the rationale behind that would be. 
 
Delegate Bennett responded that part of the money was already in Special Projects and moved 
out temporarily. 
 
Senator Hawkins remarked that slight departures of this sort are legitimate and allow everything 
to come together.  This project will give the advantage to the school systems that would not have 
it otherwise.   
 
Mr. Currin requested a five-minute recess. 
 
Senator Hawkins announced a five-minute recess.   
 
Delegate Bennett commented that he believes it will be simpler to just deal with the smaller 
amount of money that was originally in the Special Projects Fund, approximately $800,000 and 
lay the $5 million on the table. He retracted his other motion and moved to move $252,660 of the 
approximately $800,000 that was previously in the Special Projects Fund back into it in order to 
fund this consortium. 
 
Delegate Johnson made a point of order as to what motion is on the floor. 
 
Senator Hawkins stated that the previous motion needed to be withdrawn. 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 10   
 
 
Delegate Bennett replied that was done and the current motion on the floor is to transfer back 
the $252,660 to the Special Projects Fund from the Deal Closing Fund. 
 
Motion seconded 
Motion approved by aye vote 
Delegate Dudley opposed, Mr. Montgomery opposed 
Mr. Lief abstained. 
 
Delegate Bennett moved to approve the consortium project. 
Motion seconded 
 
Delegate Johnson clearly stated for the record that this in no way says that Southwest Virginia 
Educational Consortium or Southwest Virginia is involved or included in this project. 
 
All in favor by aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion approved 
 
 
Mr. Fields asked where the rest of the $5 million is. 
 
Senator Hawkins responded that it is a combination of accounts. 
 
Mr. Lief stated that the previous day in the Southside Economic Development committee 
meeting, there was a proposal from the city of Martinsville for $114,000 that was approved by 
the panel. However Martinsville had no allocation and was thus refused funding.  Mr. Lief 
hoped that this funding would be able to come out of the Special Projects Fund.  It seems to be a 
worthwhile project; maybe while the Commission is transferring funds an extra $114,000 could 
be moved as well for Martinsville. 
 
Senator Hawkins thanked Mr. Lief for bringing that to the attention of the committee.  Being 
that Martinsville is an independent city, it is not part of Henry Country and is not part of any 
allocation from the County.  There was a request from Martinsville for $114,000 to facilitate a 
small business incubator.  Senator Hawkins stated that he thinks this modest request is within 
the parameters of the Commission. 
 
Mr. Lief moved to transfer $114,000 to the Special Projects fund for the city of Martinsville. 
 
Motion seconded 
 
Delegate Kilgore stated that he thought the Special Projects fund was reserved for regional 
projects that would create jobs.   
 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 11   
 
Senator Hawkins and Mr. Lief responded that this is a project that would create jobs with 
regional businesses. 
 
Delegate Kilgore asked why can Henry County not request this money. 
 
Senator Hawkins replied that Henry County’s allocation is not as large as some. 
 
Delegate Kilgore commented that it will benefit Henry County. 
 
Senator Hawkins continued that it will benefit Henry County, Franklin County, Patrick County, 
the edges of Pittsylvania County and possibly some of Floyd County.  Senator Hawkins stated 
that it was his opinion that the proposal needed to be accepted.  He asked if anyone had any 
feelings on the matter.   
 
Mr. Currin addressed Mr. Kilgore’s concern and the budget issues. Martinsville is in fact in 
Southside Virginia.  It is the next to the largest producing tobacco county in the Commonwealth, 
it is a good application, it is regional in scope and the staff recommends it.  Maybe the 
commission can wait to take action until there is a better understanding of the budget and not 
take it out of the Deal Closing or Special Projects fund.   
 
Delegate Kilgore made a motion to delay a decision until the next meeting. 
 
Motion seconded 
 
Senator Wampler spoke to the motion.  There is something wrong with the formula that 
excludes certain entities and suggested that if it is an economic development project it should be 
heard in the Economic Development Sub-committee and stand up against all the other proposals.  
The Special Projects committee is for larger projects.   
 
Senator Hawkins said that the point was well taken and asked the committee looking at the 
budget to discuss how to handle these situations that come up that do not fit into any of the set 
criteria. 
 
All in favor by aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion accepted 
 
Burley Committee 
 
Senator Puckett reported that there are no changes in what they are doing.  They recommend 
that they continue with the 80 indemnification/20 economic development split in the budget. 
Also the indemnification split remains at 62 for the producers and 38 for the quota holders.  
Senator Puckett moved that these recommendations be accepted. 
 
Motion Seconded 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 12   
 
All in favor by aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion Adopted 
 
Southwest Economic Development Sub-Committee 
 
Senator Wampler reported that the Sub-Committee had 23 requests and they recommend 
funding 14 of those.  Each Member of the Commission should have a spreadsheet outlining the 
actions of the sub-committee.  There was a total of $13.8 million requested; there was $1.1 
million available. Therefore, many of the requests had to be cut back by 50-75%, and many 
funded would require matching funds.  The Sub-committee recommended granting $954,598 
total to the projects.  Senator Wampler made the motion to accept the recommendations of the 
Southwest Economic Development Committee.  Also by the request of Delegate Kilgore that item 
#4 (Grayson Co School Board) be contingent on a local match and that item #7(Lenowisco 
Planning District) also be contingent on such a match. 
 
Motion seconded 
 
Senator Hawkins commented for those unfamiliar with the process that there is a different 
method of financing for the two regions.  Burley went by region and Southside was more based 
on a formula.  
 
All in favor by aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion adopted 
 
Senator Wampler commented that all of the 23 proposals were varied as far as what they were 
asking for.  Only four dealt with agriculture.  It would be Senator Wampler’s hope that the 
planning district commissions would encourage the maximum participation from the agricultural 
community as well as non-profit companies.   
 
Senator Hawkins stated that the Southside Economic Development Committee would report 
after lunch. 
 
The Commission recessed for lunch. 
 
The meeting reconvened. 
 
Mr. Currin announced that he would like to add Mr. Paul Grinstead to the Southwest 
Economic Development Committee and Mr. Taylor to the Southside Economic Development 
Committee.   
 
Southside Economic Development Committee 
 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 13   
 
Delegate Clement reported on the recommendations for the acceptance of applications from the 
committee.   
 
Senator Hawkins suggested voting on them in a block except for the ones for which the 
recommendation differed from the request. 
 
Delegate Clement agreed and stated that the committee recommended full funding for 
Buckingham Co, Crater Regional Partnership, City of Danville, Franklin Co, Halifax 
Educational Foundation and Southern Virginia Higher Education Consortium as modified with 
respect to the money from the Lake Country Marketing Council.  Delegate Clement clarified 
that the applications are the same but the dollar amounts are different.  Also the Jobs for Virginia 
Graduates, Nottoway Co, Patrick Co., Pittsylvania Co, Radford University and Virginia’s Region 
2000.  Delegate Clement suggested that these be voted on in a block.  The applications that were 
modified were the City of Martinsville for which the committee deferred action on the 
recommendation of the panel for their application.  The committee’s recommendation was to 
table the application, as was the recommendation for the application from the Piedmont 
Foundation/Dan River Region.  The committee reversed the recommendation of the panel with 
respect to the application from the Town of Brookneal and approved funding, and the Town of 
South Boston/Halifax application was withdrawn.  The controversy lies in the Piedmont 
Foundation application because the others have been tabled.  Delegate Clement moved to accept 
the recommendations of the committee, except for the Piedmont Foundation. 
 
Senator Hawkins confirmed that all the applications meet the parameters set by the 
Commission. 
 
Motion seconded 
All in favor by aye vote 
None opposed 
Motion adopted 
 
Delegate Clement acknowledged that there were representatives from Pittsylvania County and 
the City of Danville who wish to speak to the Piedmont Foundation application. 
 
Senator Hawkins commented that time was at a minimum and introduced Coy Harville, 
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors, Pittsylvania County.   
 
Mr. Harville clarified that he was before the Commission as a concerned member of the 
community, friend of the tobacco community, and an individual supervisor.  He passed out 
materials concerning the funding request.  Mr. Harville’s primary concern was over component 
D.  All of this funding was approved, however as of January this year the funding has been 
stripped and revised.  The Pittsylvania Vocation Technical Program is in benefit of the 
community farmers.  People had planned on the scholarships but now that money has been taken 
away.  He pleaded that all these projects are important.  He suggested that the Danville 
Community College and Pittsylvania Vocation Technical Program funding be cut in half to 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 14   
 
$500,000 along with the Virginia Tech funding, so that one individual isn’t getting all the 
money.   
 
Fred Ingram, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of Pittsylvania County, stated that the 
Board of Supervisors by a vote of 6-1 supporting the Commission and the VPI Initiative, and 
hope that they will look favorable on what the County is trying to do. He introduced the City of 
Danville Manager, Jerry Gwaltney. 
 
Delegate Clement clarified that Mr. Ingram spoke on behalf of the County in support of the 
request for $2 million for the Piedmont Foundation. 
 
Fred Ingram confirmed that statement. 
 
Delegate Clement commented that the committee was unclear on the position of the County 
yesterday and that is why they postponed a making a decision on the application. 
 
Delegate Bennett stated that he thought the vote of 6-1 concerned another issue and that the 
Board had not voted on the Piedmont initiative. 
 
Mr. Ingram said that the Board had not voted on it but that they will and it will pass. 
 
Delegate Bennett clarified with Mr. Ingram that he did not mean to imply to Delegate 
Clement that the 6-1 vote was for the Piedmont initiative because it was not. 
 
Mr. Ingram agreed.  
 
Mr. Lief was also confused because the previous day, the Pittsylvania County (#12) application 
summary had an item D (Danville Community College VoTech) but the one they just approved 
did not. And that was what Mr. Harville was speaking about.  
 
Delegate Clement stated that he had specifically asked the person speaking to the application the 
previous day if the last line of the proposal summary, “Danville CC and vo-tech ed expansion 
programs” should be deleted.  They said yes it should be deleted and was not part of that 
proposal.  That is the money that Mr. Harville was referring to earlier. 
 
Mr. Harville stated that this concern is in no correlation to Mr. Ingram’s concern.  Four times 
Component D has been voted on and changed. 
 
Mr. Ingram restated that the Board voted 6-1, excluding what Mr. Harville is talking about, but 
added money back in the form of the VPI initiative.  What Mr. Harville says is very important 
and they want to help the community colleges and vo-tech but they have to establish priorities. 
They feel like the VPI Initiative is more important, and the City of Danville is with the county 
100%. 
 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 15   
 
County Administrator stated that it needed to be clarified that the questions the previous day 
were because they had not heard about the Pittsylvania County allocation before. 
 
Delegate Kilgore asked if it would be helpful to approve the funding contingent on the approval 
of the Board of Supervisors and the City. 
 
Delegate Clement reminded everyone that they worked hard last year on policies to govern the 
application process, that non-governmental agencies, tax exempt 501(c)(3) groups were free to 
apply.  It is his understanding that this application comes from a non-governmental agency and 
that the funds, if awarded, would come out of the county’s allocation. 
 
Mr. Ingram stated that it is coming out of a number they didn’t know they ever had. That is the 
problem that brought this up yesterday.  When they applied in September they checked on what 
their allocation was and they were told it was $3,043,338 so that is all they applied for.   
 
Mr. Arthur commented that Mr. Ingram and Mr. Harville are talking about two different 
things. 
 
Mr. Harville stated that he was doing what the Commission suggested that he do in February 
2000, to work for the direct need of the tobacco farmers. 
 
Delegate Bennett asked Mr. Ingram if they knew about the extra $2 million in their allocation. 
 
Mr. Ingram replied that they did not know but they know now. 
 
Senator Hawkins commented that this concerns the problem of notification that they fixed 
earlier. And explains to Mr. Ingram that the allocation division changed thus giving them more 
money and that was why there was a change in the amount.   
 
Delegate Bennett asked Mr. Ingram if they knew of the Piedmont application. 
 
Mr. Ingram responded that they did not but do now. 
 
Delegate Bennett asked if they had known of this money and the Piedmont application how 
would they have acted on the issue. 
 
Mr. Ingram replied that they changed the vote, on a vote of 6-1 they went in with the city of 
Danville for a million dollars, which came from the vo-tech and the community colleges. 
 
Senator Hawkins stated that the question before the Commission is the $2 million requested by 
a non-profit organization that the County did not know about.  Had you known of the $2 million 
would the county have chosen the piece that Mr. Harville is promoting or the other. 
 
Mr. Ingram replied that the city of Danville will receive $2 million and Pittsylvania County will 
receive $3 million.  They do not want that to change because the VPI Initiative is important to 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 16   
 
revitalizing the economy in Southside Virginia.  If there is money for Special Projects and that 
project being the Piedmont Foundation, they are in favor of that.  They have not voted on it but 
they would probably endorse that. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked what the time frame is for the allocation of this $2 million. 
 
Ben Davenport, Vice Chairman of the Future of the Piedmont Foundation, replied that they 
were the ones who applied and they did it because they understood that the Commission was 
looking at regional economic development initiatives.  They thought the Commission had a pool 
set aside for regional economic efforts. 
 
Senator Hawkins responded that is true but it is not assigned to the Southside Economic 
Development Committee.  Would it suit the Foundation for the Commission to vote to approve 
the project contingent on the approval of the board of supervisors? 
 
Ben Davenport stated that they were going after a different pool of money that turns out not to 
exist.  They were not going after Pittsylvania County or Danville’s money. 
 
Senator Hawkins commented that the proposal for the $2 million is for money the Board did not 
know they had so would it be a good idea to accept the proposal contingent on the approval of 
the county. 
 
Delegate Clement agreed that it would be good to vote on the project subject to the Board’s 
approval. 
 
Mr. Harville requested the Commission resolve his problem first then the Future of the 
Piedmont’s. 
 
Senator Hawkins responded that it has been resolved because it was passed in a block earlier.   
 
Mr. Harville commented that his main concern is Component D, which the Commission keeps 
getting away from. 
 
Senator Hawkins responded that they put $800,000 into Danville Community College last year 
and will probably put more in this year.  That has been a separate funding mechanism outside of 
normal allocated money.  Community Colleges have a special place with the Commission and 
the Commission understands its obligation to them. 
 
Mr. Harville spoke of his support of the Future of the Piedmont but wished that they had known 
of the money available. 
 
Mr. Bryant requested that Mr. Harville with the Board of Supervisors at least consider front 
loading the funds toward the Virginia Tech Initiative but not totally cut out the community 
colleges. 
 



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 17   
 
Senator Hawkins reminded Mr. Ingram and Mr. Harville that there is a Spring Application 
process for these monies as well. 
 
Mr. Ingram asked if they had any allocation for May. 
 
Senator Hawkins responded that there will be. 
 
Mr. Lief asked why the Commission does not follow the applicant and county’s wishes, which is 
to have this come before the Special Projects Committee. 
 
Mr. Arthur commented that during the Southside Economic Development Committee he moved 
to table the issue because there appeared to be a failure to communicate.  Now that they have 
come together and seem to understand each other, Mr. Arthur moved that the Commission 
accept the panel’s recommendation, reinstate it and accept it contingent upon the approval of 
the Board of Supervisors and City Council.   
 
Motion seconded 
 
Senator Hawkins responded to Mr. Lief that it is his understanding that the project is ready to 
go and any more delay in referring it to another committee would create problems.  This debate 
needs to occur within the Board of Supervisors and City Council.  
 
Delegate Bennett moved the question. 
 
All in favor by aye vote 
None opposed  
Motion adopted 
 
Senator Hawkins commented to Mr. Harville that his presentation was well taken and 
reminded him of the May application.  And thank you for the cooperation between the county of 
Pittsylvania and the City of Danville. 
 
Mr. Gwaltney, City Manager of Danville, addressed the Commission concerning this issue.  It is 
through the generosity of this commission that things are being done with Pittsylvania and 
Danville that was never thought possible.  The reason the Board of Supervisors voted 6-1 is that 
the County and City have an agreement to put up like amounts of money for this initiative and to 
go into joint agreements with cyber parks and industrial parks.  That is very important to turning 
the economy around.  The Board of Supervisors changed allocations so that they could match 
monies together.  They have proceeded on those agreements.  The issue at this stage is what 
Pittsylvania County needs to do. Mr. Gwaltney stated that they support the application for the 
Future of the Piedmont.  If they do not get the MSAPS or the fiber, none of the efforts thus far 
put forth will work.  It is imperative to have this cooperative relationship with Virginia Tech.  
The missing link for all of this is the fiber and the technology that brings this about.  
 
Senator Hawkins stated that they need to set a date for the next meeting.   



Full Commission Meeting Minutes 
March 9, 2001 
Page 18  
 

 

 
Senator Ruff stated that the Education Committee will meet in the last half of April at a location 
to be announced. 
 
Mr. Currin stated that the next Full Commission meeting will be in June.  Staff will survey the 
Commission to see what date suits the members. 
 
Senator Hawkins asks Mr. Bryant how that timing would affect the farmers. 
 
Mr. Bryant replied that it should be fine. 
 
Senator Hawkins asked the Commission where they want to meet.  They decided upon 
Lynchburg.  The time will be set after polling the members.  The last presentation is Noesis, Inc. 
 
Senator Wampler stated that because he felt the committee reports were confusing at times, he 
asked Mr. Currin to develop some way that the committees would do their work in time to have 
the reports prior to the Full Commission meeting.  Senator Wampler comments that he thinks 
they voted on too many proposals too fast.   
 
Senator Hawkins agreed and commented that it is a growing and learning process. 
 
Ms. Thomas requested a packet of information on the budget for the next meeting. 
 
Senator Hawkins responded that there would be a budget work group meeting and the 
information from that meeting would be available. 
 
Delegate Bennett requested information and data on where the Commission stands with 
indemnification and the farmers’ losses. 
 
Senator Hawkins replied that they will get that information out to the members. 
 
 
Presentation by Noesis, Inc. 
Richard Martin, President, and Roger Neighborgall briefed the Commission on the packet of 
information they received. 
 
Information packet distributed to the members and available from staff. 
 
Meeting adjourned approx. 2:30pm.   
 
 
Submitted by Carthan F. Currin, III 
 
______________________________________ 
Executive Director of the Commission 


	Approved June 8, 2001
	Members Present by Roll Call
	Senator Hawkins commended the Commission Staff for its outstanding job with this new endeavor and remarked on Virginia’s leadership role regarding Tobacco Settlement money.
	Delegate Kilgore made a motion to approve the minutes from the January 8, 2001, Full Commission Meeting.
	Seconded
	All in favor by aye vote
	None opposed 
	Motion adopted
	Clark Lewis of Troutman Saunders Mays & Valentine spoke to the Commission and announced that they have concluded the year 2000 indemnification payments.  There was $62 million available last year for indemnification.  Currently $60,076,126.67 has been distributed through the State Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services and the Department of the Treasury, leaving approximately $1.9 million remaining.  Because the Commission decided to approve no additional forms, the books are closed for the year 2000 indemnification payments, and they are now beginning the year 2001.  Projected Dates for the indemnification process are: April 15, 2001, Verification forms will be sent out; during the week of April 22, five regional workshop sessions will be conducted in Southwest and Southside Virginia; pending approval from the Commission, May 10 or 11 will be the deadline for receiving verification forms; payment data will be sent to the State Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services by May 15 for checks to be distributed to farmers before Memorial Day Weekend.
	Delegate Kilgore clarified his reasons for voting against this motion in Executive Committee.  It should be the goal of the Commission to find the best projects regardless of where it is, and the localities should not be led to believe that they have veto power over another application or a right to the money.  The localities could get that same information by calling and requesting it.  
	Senator Hawkins stated that this change will allow the localities to discuss and resolve conflicts before they come before the Commission, thus putting everyone on the same page and helping the tone and communication within the application process.  And by no means would this give them veto power; it is simply a notification.  
	Motion adopted by aye vote
	Committee Reports

	Deal Closing Committee
	Special Projects Committee
	Delegate Bennett stated that each commissioner should have a copy of Southside Virginia Regional Technology Consortium and an Exhibit A showing the counties participating in the project (attached).  If there are questions, the project leaders are available to answer them.  The Special Projects Committee voted unanimously to approve their request for a hardware piece, which is outlined on the third to last page of the document.  The object of this project is to bring technology into K-12 classrooms, facilitate distance learning, and to put our rural schools on the same technological level as others.  He introduced Troilen Seward, Carole Inge, and Paul Nichols.  Delegate Bennett moved to accept this project.
	Motion seconded

	Mr. Lief requested clarification as to why this project was assigned to the Special Projects Committee.
	Ms. Inge responded to Mr. Grinstead that the money they are requesting is for a Data Hub to connect the school divisions. To talk back, the divisions need the equipment as well.  
	Mr. Lief commented that the previous day, the SW Economic Development Committee had to prorate dramatically and cut funding for a whole series of projects because there was not enough money to fund them and now we are proposing to move money to Special Projects to fully fund a project. He wondered what the rationale behind that would be.
	Senator Hawkins continued that it will benefit Henry County, Franklin County, Patrick County, the edges of Pittsylvania County and possibly some of Floyd County.  Senator Hawkins stated that it was his opinion that the proposal needed to be accepted.  He asked if anyone had any feelings on the matter.  
	Motion seconded
	All in favor by aye vote
	None opposed
	Motion accepted

	Burley Committee
	Southwest Economic Development Sub-Committee
	Southside Economic Development Committee
	Motion seconded
	All in favor by aye vote



